MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF WILLIAMSON-TRAVIS COUNTIES

MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1

December 17, 2009
STATE OF TEXAS
§


§

COUNTIES OF WILLIAMSON AND TRAVIS
§

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Williamson-Travis Counties Municipal Utility District No. 1 was held at 6:00 p.m. on November 18, 2009, at the District office at The Park at Lakeline Oaks, 1000 Old Mill Road, Cedar Park, Texas 78613.  The meeting was open to the public and notice was given as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

Director Kenny called the roll of the members of the Board:

	Chris Rocco
	-
	President

	Robert Kenny 
	-
	Vice President

	Linda Garrett
	-
	Secretary

	Brian T. Hardin
	-
	Treasurer

	Luis Zervigon
	-
	Assistant Secretary/Treasurer


All directors were present, thus constituting a quorum.  Also attending the meeting were Kristi Hester and Becky Stathos with Severn Trent Services; Bill Flickinger with Willatt & Flickinger; Don Bayes with Gray-Jansing & Associates; Rachel Colby with RealManage; Greg Vinella with ECOSystems; and District resident Beverly Zervigon. 
Director Rocco called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. and stated that the Board would first consider Agenda Item 1:  Citizens Communication.  
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 2:  Report from the District’s engineer.  
a. Encroachment by owner of 2800 Cashell Woods onto Volente Park property – expansion of access easement.  Mr. Flickinger and Mr. Bayes met with the resident about constructing a turnaround in her driveway.  She seemed amenable to the proposal and contributing to the cost.  Mr. Bayes said it will probably run $2,500 to $3,000 and he will have the price in time for the January meeting.  Mr. Flickinger will draw up the necessary documents.  The resident will be asked to contribute 50% of the cost not to exceed $1,000.  No motion was necessary.
b. Construction status of CMU wall in Lakeline Oaks adjacent to Independent Living Facility owned by Lakeline Oaks Retirement, LLC.  Mr. Bayes said the wall is substantially complete and the contractor is in the process of restoring areas.  
c. Lakeline Oaks Section One Fence Improvements; Pay Estimate No. 2, Final Pay Estimate, and Acceptance of Construction.  The contractor was not able to get documentation to Mr. Bayes in time for this meeting.  
d. Improvements to Anderson Mill West Park.  Mr. Bayes explained the Infrastructure Committee asked him to look at Anderson Mill West and Sunchase Parks.  He has identified five areas where some work needs to be done.  He will establish the scope of work and obtain pricing for presentation to the Board at its January 2010 meeting.  
Following a discussion, Director Garrett moved to direct Severn Trent to contact the HOA management company for Hunters Glenn I regarding the 15’ drainage easement between homes that is being used for access into Sunchase Park.   Director Zervigon seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 3:  Report from the District’s landscape contractor on landscape maintenance and suggested landscape improvements.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 5:  Report from the DRC and act on restrictive covenant enforcement.  STS will send Mr. Flickinger a copy of the packet prepared for Hunters Glenn II residents wanting to make architectural modifications.

Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 9:  Funding for and interaction with homeowners associations within the District to facilitate operation of Architectural Control Committee and other HOA functions.  There was no discussion on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 10:  Rules for enforcement of restrictive covenants that include fines and termination of services.  There was no discussion under this agenda item.
STS will contact the Fire Department about painting addresses on curbs.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 6:  Authorization of lawsuit against Brandon Finnegan for deed restriction violations; fines pending.  Mr. Flickinger explained that the boat was moved before he had the opportunity to write a demand letter.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 7:  Approval of DRC Minutes by Deed Restriction Committee Members.  The November minutes were approved by the committee. 
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 4:  Report from District’s Manager and Affected Persons, including payment of bills and invoices and transfer of funds. 
a) Review and discussion of pending Board directives to Manager, attorneys, Board members and subcommittees

b) Committee reports

c) Water and wastewater system report

d) Security measures for the water system

e) Review changes made to Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) Manual

f) Detention pond and related issues

g) Preventative maintenance program

h) Billing report

i) Customer and resident complaints

j) Adjustment of delinquent accounts

k) Builder and aged receivables

l) Collection of delinquent property taxes

m) Quarterly investment reports

n) Bill payment report

o) Financials

p) Solid waste collection & disposal service

q) District patrols- Agreements for Patrol Services including office building access control and security and deed restriction compliance
r) Manhole cleanout/maintenance
s) Stormwater Management Plan
Ms. Hester said it has been nearly one year since the tennis key fobs were issued.  Following a discussion, STS was directed to notify all key fob owners that it is time to renew.  The process will be reviewed prior to January 2011
Directives were reviewed and are attached.

Information about the City of Cedar Park increasing the fire protection fee will be added to the website. A tip about keeping valuables out of sight in vehicles will also be added.  
Ms. Hester then reviewed District operations, maintenance, and financial transactions during November.  

On a motion by Director Hardin, seconded by Director Rocco, the Board voted unanimously to approve the write-offs totaling $682.17 and requested that future write-offs be presented to the Bills & Invoices Committee instead of the full Board.  
Director Hardin made a motion to approve payment of invoices totaling $221,559.42 and ratify bills paid out of the Manager’s account.  Director Kenny seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. This includes check #9380 in amount of $1,136.40.

Ms. Hester was asked to furnish the Bills & Invoices Committee with a copy of the Board’s travel policy.
Director Rocco reported that he attended a meeting with County Commissioner Cynthia Long and that the County has not yet finalized a security contract.

Deputy Veselka will request all constables to furnish more complete logs.

Ms. Hester was directed to include the projected budget in the January packet.  She will make sure capital project tracking and fund balances are also included.
Director Hardin prepared the draft of the response to the audit management letter.  STS will make the suggested changes and courier it to Director Hardin for signature.  

Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 8:  Reports from ACCs.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 11:  Report from the Park Subcommittee regarding park improvements.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 12:  All matters related to the District’s parks, fields, and office building.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 13:  Use of tennis courts for business purposes and time limits; Tennis Court Rules; Park Rules.  This item can now be removed from the agenda.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 14:  Sherry Rhoden’s request to the Board at prior board meeting that it consider her usage of the LLO tennis courts for tennis lessons as permissible.  This item can now be removed from the agenda.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 15:  Water Conservation Measures.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 16:  Newsletter and District Website.  New e-mail addresses have been established for board members at @wtcmud1.org
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 17:  Proposal for Newsletter Services.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco said discussion of Agenda Item 18:  District depository, bank accounts – Compass Bank Board Resolutions for accounts.  Mr. Flickinger distributed a supplement regarding this agenda item.  Ms. Hester will send a copy to her contact at the bank to make sure is okay with them before a vote is taken in January.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 19:  Amend Budget.  This item is in subcommittee.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 20:  Management Contract with STES.  The Infrastructure Committee has requested that the current contract be separated into two contracts, one for operations and maintenance and the other for accounting.  Mr. Flickinger explained in the event the current contract expires, it will continue in effect on a month-to-month basis unless canceled by either party.   On a motion by Director Zervigon, seconded by Director Hardin, the Board voted unanimously to extend the contract on a month-to-month basis and to finalize negotiations of a new contract as soon as possible.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 21:  City of Cedar Park Water Rate Increase.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 22:  Proposal for Strategic planning services and Annexation of District by City of Cedar Park.  The annual review of this agenda item will take place in July or August.  In the meantime, it will remain on the agenda.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 23:  Rate Order.  On a motion by Director Hardin, seconded by Director Zervigon, the Board voted unanimously to raise the Fire Protection Fee charged to District residents from $14.52 to $16.67 to coincide with the increase from the City of Cedar Park.  
Director Zervigon moved to adjust the water rates to reflect increases by the City of Cedar Park.  Director Hardin seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

Information regarding both increases will be added to the next bill and posted on the website.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 24:  Rate Order, Section IV, sub-paragraphs A, B and E.  Mr. Flickinger explained that this portion of the Rate Order was sent to the Customer Care Committee for review of the delinquent notice policy.  It can now be removed from the agenda.

Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 25:  District’s Service Agreement, Delinquent Notice and Rules and Regulations for Water and Wastewater Service.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 26:  City of Cedar Park’s proposed rezoning of tract adjacent northeast of the Lakeline Park.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 27:  Commercial property compliance with City of Cedar Park regulations.  No action was taken on this agenda item.
Director Rocco called for Agenda Item 28:  Minutes from the November 18, 2009 regular meeting and December 2, 2009 special meeting.  On a motion by Director Zervigon, seconded by Director Kenny, the minutes from the November 18, 2009 regular meeting were approved.  Director Hardin abstained since he was not in attendance at that meeting.
Director Zervigon moved, Director Kenny seconded, and the Board voted unanimously to approve the minutes from the December 2, 2009 special meeting.

Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 29: Reconsideration of Minutes previously approved with oral revisions.  There were no minutes up for reconsideration.
Director Rocco then called for Agenda Item 30: Election of Officers.  Director Zervigon proposed the following slate of officers:
	President
	-
	Director Garrett

	Vice President
	-
	Director Kenny

	Secretary
	-
	Director Rocco

	Treasurer
	-
	Director Hardin

	Ass’t Secretary/ Treasurer
	-
	Director Zervigon


Director Kenny seconded the motion.  Following a discussion, the motion carried 4 to 0, with Director Rocco abstaining.
Director Zervigon expressed the Board’s thanks to Director Rocco and welcomed Director Garrett as its first female president.  

Following further discussion, directors agreed that the vast amount of experience possessed by Board members should be codified for use by future boards.  The plan is to establish SOPs for each committee prior to the May election.  Each committee should develop a one-page description defining what the committee does, who is responsible, and which contracts are  assigned to the committee.
Election of Officers can now be removed from the agenda.

Director Garrett then called for Agenda Item 31: Committee Assignments.  This item will remain on the agenda.

Director Garrett then called for Agenda Item 32:  Adjournment.  The meeting was adjourned at 10:17 p.m.

______________________________

Chris Rocco, Secretary

Board of Directors

Date:  _________________________
Minutes, December 17, 2009

Page 5

